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The Baptist Insurance Company PLC

Directors’ Biographies

M. N. Hayes BSc, F 1 Chem. E, FCII Chair

Appomnted to the board in 2006. Managing director of a business and financial consultancy. Formerly a director of Zunch Commercial Insurance
Business UK Qualified engineer and chartered insurer, Director of a renewable energy business, a property management company Member and
Trustee of Encounter Vinevard Church Winchcombe

Mrs A. Bishop MBA

Appomnted to the board in 2015 Formerly CEQO of a regional Chnistian charity. following a career in marketing and public relations. and currently
MD of a company importing Fair Trade products frem Sri Lanka. Extensive govermnance experience underpinned by an Advanced Certificate in
Cerporate Governance. Currently the Chair of a local Christian homelessness chanty. Active member of a local Baptist chureh.

M. A. Broad MBE

Appointed 1o the board in 2011, Retired sentor commercial manager at HSBC Bank plc Former treasurer of the Baptist Union of Great Britamn and
former moderator of the Baptist Pension Scheme Emplovers Group. Treasurer/Trustee of the Bristol Baptist College and Treasurer/Deacon of Keynsham
Baptist Church  Chair/Trustee of the Futura Lcarming Partnership, Kevnsham Chair of Governors at Sexey’s School, Bruton, Malcolm has over 22
vears experience dehvering trustee training to many Baptist churches, colleges and associations across the country. Appointed a National Leader
of Govemance by the Department of Education between 2016 — 2021 Awarded an MBE in the 2008 New Year's Honours list for seevices to Education
in Bristol.

J, P. H. Entwisle MA, MBA, ACA

Appeinted to the Board in 2021 Formerly Managing Partner of a major UK actuanal and investment consultancy A chartered accountant and
trustee of three charities covering education. financial inclusion and Christian witness both in the UK and India Deacon and treasurer of Speen Baptist
Church in Buckinghamshire

H. A. Francis BSc, FCA

Appointed to the Board in 2021 A Charlered Accountant with more than 30 vears™ experience in the insurance sector and has worked for Aviva
since 2001 where he is Director of' External Reporting Developments being responsible for assessing and responding 10 future extemal reporting and
regulatory and accounting developments, including IFRS and Solvency II. Currently Vice Chair of the Insurance Furape Corporate Reporting Group
and a member of both the EFRAG Insurance Accounting Working Group and ICAEW Insurance sub-committee In addition, Chair of the ABI Financial
Reporting Commaittee and a member of the ABI Prudential Financial and Taxation Committee Chairman of the CFO Forum Solveney 1T Working
group, a member of the EIOPA IRSG Stakeholder Group. a member of the CFO Forum Steering Commuttee and is also a former Chair of the CFO
Forum Insurance Accounting Group Hugh is an Elder and Treasurer at Testwood Baptist Church

D. L.ane B.Comm {Heons), Certified Insurance Director

Appointed tothe board n 2017 CEQ of the Baptist Insurance Company ple and Managing Director of Ecclesiastical Insurance in Ireland.
Previously held a number of seniot executive roles across UK. Ireland and Europe Member of the National Development Council of the Wexford
Festival of Opera and the Non-life Council of Insurance Ireland Appointed to the Board of Depaul. Ireland in 2019

E. C. Oshorne MA

Appointed to the board in 2021 Currently has a number of trusiee and non-executive positions within pensions, investment and micro-finance
Previous exceutive career was in tinancial services, mainly focussed on nvestment management. including as Chief Investment Officer for the
intermational assets of a US insurance company. Member of the Church of England and currently a lav canon of Salisbury Cathedral.

T. J. Rase MBA, C Dir

Appomted to the board n 2002 Managing director of a corporate tinance boutique. Formerly director of a major City broking house specialising m
wholesale financial instruments. A qualified Chartered Director and non-executive director of the Bible Society: Resources Lid Deacon of Colchester
Baptist Church

M. H. Tripp BSc¢, ARCS, FIA, Senior Independent Director

Appointed to the board in 2015 Formerly a partner with City Advisory and accountancy firm Mazars LLLP and council member of the Institute of
Faculty of Actuaries Formerly Group CEO of Ecclesastical Insurance and before that partner at Ernst & Young. and actuarial firm Watson Wyartt TLP.
Recently completed his six-yvear term as Non Executive Chair of Umity, a specialist Insurance broker belonging to The Scout Association, and also non-
executive director of a London Market Insurer, he has over 40 vears UK Insurance industry experience He 15 an active Christian, attending a church in
Chingford
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Chair's Statemcent

This statement comes to you after yet another challenging year but with very different reasons than the last report. Whilst the
pandemic influence of Covid-19 has waned and most churches are meeting in similar ways to pre-Covid, online services have
generally been retained and we have seen some outstanding growth which may never have happened without the shock to the
conventional church service framework.

The ongoing situation continues in all its brutality in Ukrainc and again we deplore the aggressive invasion by Russia and President
Putin and we pray for a peaceful end to the mindless conflict. We seek God’s mercy towards the cowardly perpetrators of such
unmitigated violence against a sovercign state and continue to pray for a rapid end to the war, We remain committed to help
wherever we can and are in regular touch through the European Baptist Federation (EBF). with those on the front line of
maintaining a Gospel presence in the face of overwhelming and oppressive challenges.

Climate impact continues to be at the forefront of national and international news and the recent devastating earthquakes in Turkey
and Syria once again highlight the nced for concerted action to limit the impact of Climatic disaster. The series of major storms.
floeds and windstorms at regular intervals throughout the year also impacted claims where we were privileged as the insurer of
first choice to the Baptist community to support and rebuild churches which had suffered damage.

We were fortunate to be able to support many more outreach activities during the year with grant distribution again reaching
almost £300.000 — this has been utilised to catalyse or extend the reach of'the Gospel including training in Evangelism. More than
ten church plants in UK and Furope. Youth and children’s events and outreach, mental health outreach and support for those
churches with a real heart to touch lives in their local community were all a part of our grant programme in the year.

In March 2023 we sponsored a two day conference for these pioneering entrepreneurs who are at the forefront of inspirational
outreach within the Baptist family — entitled Discipleship Enablers it is bringing together 30 pioneering experts who we trust will
find effective ways of learning and working together missionally to maximise Kingdom growth.

Turning to the company results. | report a challenging year but with some really encouraging elements. For the first time in sevceral
years We grew our gross written premium with a significant number of our internal KPI's being met or exceeded within the year.

Gross written premium increased by 8.4% (2021 2.2% increase) which is a very acceptable outcome in a marketplace which has
been and continues (o be competitive in all areas of the business. Retention levels remain high as most Baptist churches value the
responsive service and advice from the internally bascd statt tcams. The majority of Baptist churches have entered into long term
agreements providing stability to their costs and also sccurity of support from the Company.

Underwriting performance once again was positive with a contribution to the overall result of £617,807 which was higher than
2021 where it was £389.668. Those readers who have followed the company performance over the years will recall that investment
returns and underwriting performance can be counter-cyclical depending on weather patterns and wider Global market forces.
2022 showed the essence of this with positive underwriting out turn contrasted with poor investment returns.

We were delighted 10 allocate grants of just under £297.000 from our reserves. and pay out over £337.000, which represents over
the past three years a grant contribution to the Baptist family of just under £1m. We are humbled 1o have contributed 1o some
outstanding initiatives to rcach people with the life changing Gospel in UK. Europe and further afield and to see the impact that
we can make with grant support.

One of our biggest disappointments was the investment performance which. in line with the majority of the market. showed a loss
in all of our investiment areas. Qur total investment loss was £1.119m compared to an investment gain the previous year of
£0.985m. Fixed interest returns showed an uncxpected loss partly due to the ill-advised Government fiscal action which rocked
the gilt and bond markets, Qur equity portfolio alse suftfered amid market weakness and, to a degree. from our commiiment to
Ethical. Environmental. Social and Governance (ELSG) investing since Oil & Gas and Defence stocks (which typically do not
meet our funds® investment criteria) performed very strongly in the wake of Russia’s invasion of Ukraine. We continue to believe.
however, that our EESG approach remains the appropriate one for the company’s investments, The investment position has
improved since the end of the year and we are currently recouping some of the losses of the past year.

We are gratetul to the Investment Committee members who have worked hard (o ensure the right investment decisions are made
in spitc of extreme market turbulence.

Looking back over the past six vears the overall investment return has been of the order of £1.86m in total, equivalent to 5% per
annum, justifving the risk of investing in {inancial instruments compared to cash deposits.

Qur overall post tax loss afier grants was £947.185 which whilst disappointing still enables us to report a very strong solvency
position which the Directors feel prudent to retain at a time of continued economic uncertainty.
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Chair's Statement

We continue to take a conservative view of latent claims which arise from potential exposure relating to historic abuse within
both UK and overseas. Considerable press and media comments and investigations rightly place this matter at the forefront of
public interest and we continue to support any who have been aftected by such exposure.

The Grants Commiltee’s web-based application process has been well received which makes it easier to submit grant applications
and facilitates a more rapid treatment of those requests recognising that in many cases. the money is crucial to their Evangelistic
outreach and a rapid response is valued.

We were able to partner again with several of the regional associations to support outreach work with further joint meetings with
team feaders being planned in 2023 following the missional conterence referred to above,

Our steadily increasing support to the EBF has continued throughout the year in both Western and the former Eastern Europe.
with some outstanding and inspirational progress being made.

[ would like to express our deep appreciation to the marketing, underwriting. survey and claims teams dealing day to day with
our pelicyholders and without whom we would not have seen the successful underwriting result declared above.

During the year we again reinforced our sales initiative for new household and manse business and can report that this take up
has been encouraging as private household policyholders recognise the value of both the personal touch over the phone and the
high quality of competitively priced cover we provide. We have also taken the bold step of engaging our first full time Relationship
manager with a remit to support existing policyholders but also seek new business opportunitics within the Christian market . We
remain committed to generate increased growth in all business areas and are encouraged that we have seen some steady progress
in 2022,

Finally. | would like to pay tribute to the work of the Directors who serve the Company with skill and capahility in a variety of
disciplines. We are privileged to have Directors of extremely high calibre whe punch well above their weight for a company of
our size. This year has seen yct another increasc in workload for the Directors with the impact of market and rate uncertainties as
well as energy inflation affecting the churches. They serve tirglessly to ensure that the Company is well positioned to enjoy a
secure capital base whilst fulfilling its role as the provider of Insurance expertise to the Baptist community. 1 am immensely
grateful for their wisdom and support

Conclusion

We are grateful to God for a year of challenge and progression in the business and look to build further on this in 2023, We
continue with our marketing initiatives. product launch and further development in our growth and capital strategies and trust to
he able to report further progress throughout the vear.

Our key desire remains to fully support the Baptist community with their insurance needs. and in parallel through our grant giving
programme, spearhead the use of Kingdom finance into areas of Gospel deprivation to see Jesus accepted as Lord in those areas.

We arc grateful that as a Board that we can contribute to real heart-moving outreach in some of the challenging areas of distress
and disadvantage and we trust that in 2023 we can further support the work of life-changing transformation through a knowledge
of Jesus Christ as Lord.

M SVENVVNR \C‘L’w’\uf\\ N
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M. N. Hayes Chair -
On behalf of the directors
30 March 2023



The Baptist Insurance Company PLC
Strategic Report

The directors present their strategic report for the vear ended 31 December 2022.

Objective and strategy
The Baptist Insurance Company PLC (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated. registered and domiciled in
England. authorised and regulated by the Prudential Regulation Authority {PRA) and Financial Conduct Authority (FCA).

Our vision for the Company is to be the first choice insurer within the Baptist community and to run a successful insurance
business with the highest standards of integrity. helping to create safe environments for worship. witness and service.

We look 10 generate operating profits through the provision of insurance and through returns on investments, with the goal to
maintain or strengthen the Company s capital pesition. This allows the Company to conlinue on an ongeing basis and to provide
services at @ competitive price with the aim of rcinvesting back into the Baptist community via the provision of grants.

Business model

The principal activity of the Company is the transaction of fire, accident and ancillary liability insurance. We provide
insurance and risk managcment advice for churches. as well as offering home insurance for Baptist Ministers. church volunteers
and ehurch members.

All risks undertaken by the Company are reinsured with Ecclesiastical Insurance Office ple (EIO), except eligible terrorism risks
which are reinsured with a third partv. Pool Re.

To generate sustainable operating profits, the Company looks to achieve an effective cost base in providing our customers with
the highest quality of service be it in buying our services or making claims. To this endeavour the Company outsources its
operational activities to EIO. enabling the Company to provide our customers with a service from highly trained staft who are
experts in their field.

The Board monitor the service levels provided through the outsourced agreement with EIO on a monthly basis 1o ensurc they
meet expectations and the Company are receiving value for money. These measures include. but are not limited to telephony
statistics. customer satistaction. quotes issued and conversion to policies.

Review of business performance
The results of the Company for the year are shown in the statement of profit or loss on page 19. Key performance indicators
arc included below.

Gross written premium

Gross written premiums increased to £4.031,163 (2021: £3.717.484) representing an increase of 8.4%. This increase can be
attributed to the impact of the indexation levels which have experienced an increase throughout the year. Over the past five years
premiums show compound growth of 2.24% per annum.

Claims ratio

Our claims ratio (gross incurred claims to gross earned premiums) of 51.7% (2021: 50.3%) shows a 1.4 point increase on the
previous year. The current year's performance is driven by the run-off account where a number of Pre-1998 claims have been
registered. which compares to the experience in 2021 where a similar level of new run-off claims was also seen.

Profit commission

The reinsurance treaty with E10 continues, The amouni reccivable for the cutrent year based on the sharing ot'the net underwriting
result was £617.807 (2021: £389.668). which was higher than budget: the key driver in both years being the favorable claims
experience. particularly the current year which saw a claims ratio (excluding company run-off activity) of 29.5% (2021 36.7%).

Investment return

The economic downturn experienced globally arising from scveral factors including sustained high inflation rates as well as
continued volatile market conditions. As a result. the Company's net investment return was a loss of £1.119.213 (2021: profit of
£984.947). The Company continues 10 monitor and review the investment strategy to ensure a balance between potential reward
and future losses.

Charitable grants
The aim ol the Company and the directors continues 1o be to support the wider Baptist tamily. During 2022 grants of £296.557
(2021: £296.461) were approved. and £2.500 (2021: £42.896) was accrued at year end.

Equity and reserves

The factors outlined above have all had an influence on results for the year. Profit/(loss) before tax decreased to a loss off
£1.122.385 (2021: profit of £658,755) and after the impact of tax, has decreased reserves by £947.185 (2021: increase of
£528.192).
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Regulatory, solvency and capital management

The Company is required to comply with the rules issued by the PRA and FCA. inciuding a Europe-wide regulatory capital regime
{Solvency 11} adopted by the PRA. Annual quantitative returns arc submitted to the PRA in addition to a qualitative report, the
Regular Supervisory Report (RSR) which is submitted periodically. A further report, the Solvency and Financial Condition Report
{SFCR) is produced annually and must be published on the Company's website.

The Company has adopted the Solvency 11 standard fermula approach to determine its solvency capital requirement (SCR).
The Company is required 10 maintain its regulatory capital above the higher of the SCR and MCR (Minimum Capital
Requirement). For the 2022 accounts. the applicable measure is the MCR. Economic capital is the Company’s own internal view
of the level of capital required. and this measure is an integral part of the Own Risk and Solvency Assessment Report (ORSA)
which is a private. internal forward looking assessment of own risk and capital requirement. as required as part of the Solvency
11 regime. Risk appetite is set such that the target level of cconomic capital is always higher than the regulatory MCR.

As at 31 December 2022, the estimated and unaudited solvency ratio. which is defined as Solvency 11 Own Funds as a proportion
of the MCR. was 240% (2021: 295%).

Principal risks and uncertainties
The principal risks and uncertainties. together with details of the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Company are disclosed in notes 3 and 4 to the financial statements.

The World Economic Forum's Risk Report continues to consider cyber threats as one of the top five risks facing organisations
and governments worldwide and has increased since the onset of the pandemic particularly following the increase in remote
working. with cyber attacks becoming more aggressive and sophisticated. Through the administration agreement with E10. a
number of security measures are deployed to cnsure protected system access which include security reviews and assessments
performed on an ongoing basis as well as ongoing maintenance and monitoring of our systems and infrastructure in order to
prevent and detect cyber security attacks.

The Company is exposed to daily calls on its available cash resources mainly from claims arising from insurance contracts.
Liquidity risk is the risk that funds may net be available to pay obligations when due. The Company has robust processes in place
to manage liquidity risk and has adequate access 10 lunding in case of exceptional need. Sources of funding include available cash
balances. other readily marketable asscts and access to short term bank funding.

Climate Change and environment

The impacts of climate change provide some of the greatesi challenges facing the world. both now and in the future. The risks
arising from climate change will emerge over various time horizons and their nature will depend on actions that are taken from
now onwards. The greatest impacts of these risks are expecied to materialise in the medium to Jong-term.

Climate change presents increasing levels of risk 1o both the Company and its custorners. The Board recogniscs the importance

of understanding and managing these risks and has set up a strong governance framework to facilitate this process. The Board

oversees the Company s overall position and key management positions have responsibilities for managing risks arising trom
climate change embedded within their roies.

The key risks identified for the Company are:

- physical risk of increasing severity and trequency of weather-relaled events leading to rising levels of property insurance
claims. The impacts on the Company s insurance risks are primarily related to locations of the insured propertics and will
be informed by emerging modelling capabilitics: and

- transition risk to the value of investment assets as the world moves to become a low carbon economy. The Company has
adopted an Lthical. Environmental. Social and Governance investment policy which uses positive and negative screening
as welt as shareholder engagement that will enable mitigation of the impact of these risks.
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The current cconomic climate, inflation and cost of living crisis. driven by a number of economic and political events during the
year, has created an additional uncertainty 10 the business during 2022. Our investment return has been impacted but we maintain
a long term strategy on the portfolio to generate profits, and we are aware of increased costs within the Company s expense base
as intlation continues. We are also cognisant of the impact of this volatility to our customers and remain mindtul of this in our
underwriting and grant-giving strategy. Our capital position and solvency coverage remain in a strong position and projections
suggest this would continue. We continue to closely monitor developments in this area and the evolving impact it may have on

the business.

Non-financial information statement

As an authorised insurance entity the Company js covered by sections 414CA and 414CB of the Companies Act 2006 (A 2006).
The Company has opted to take excinplion in accordance with subsection 4(b) of s.414CA of the Act, and has not prepared the
non financial information statement in the strategic report as it has no employees.

Section 172 Statement

The directors confirm that during 2022 and to the date of this Report. they have acted to promote the success of the Company for
the benefit of its members as a whole and considered the matters as set out in section [72(1)(a} to {f} of the CA 2006, This section
provides an overview of how the directors have had regard to those matters when performing their duties.

The Board has delegated day to day management of the Company to Ecclesiastical Insurance Office ple (E10) undet the terms of a
Joint Administration Agreement (JAA). Therefore where matters may impact EIO. a collaborative approach is taken to stakeholder
engagement between the Board and EIO.

Our Approach to the Long Term Success of the Company

The Board of directors recognises that the long-lerm success of the Company is dependent upon having regard (o the interests of its
stakcholders. This is achieved by engaging with stakeholders to understand their views and interests. Dialogue with stakeholders
can help the Board to understand significant changes in the landseape. predict future developments and trends. and develop strategy
that is aligned to stakehoider interests.

Our Stakeholders

The Company’s stakeholders are identified in the Company s Governance Framework. and arc at the core of all decision making,
Key stakeholders include our customers. regulators. shareholders. The Baptist Union of Great Britain (Baptist Union) and other
Baptist organisations, the Baptist Community, EIO, suppliers. the wider community and its environment. Examples of the way the
Board has engaged with some of these stakeholder groups throughout the year are set out below.

Stakeholder Engagement in decision making

The Board adopts a range of approaches to engage with stakeholders and recognises that the imporiance of a stakeholder group may
differ depending on the matter to be considered. Given the nature of the business. the Board sometimes engages directly with
stakeholders and also understands that it may be more appropriate for engagement 1o be undertaken at an operational level.

The directors receive directors’ duty training as part of their induction. and arc regularly reminded of their statutory duties. which
includes all aspects of section 172 of the Act. In addition. key paper writers have received board paper writing training. and are
encouraged to ensure that a stakeholder analysis is included within the papers. This facilitates robust strategic discussions which
take into account the long term success of the Company in addition to any direct and or indirect implications for stakeholders.

The Board considers a varicty of information to understand the impact of the Company s operations and also the interests and views
of key stakeholders. A one-year roliing plan of business for discussion is agreed annuaily to ensure that the Board is focused on
matters at the right time and sufficient time is allowed for appropriate consideration and debate. Information is provided 1o directors
in papers in advance of each Board mecting. In addition, EIO employvees working on behalf of the Company are invited to attend
mectings to provide insight into key matters and developments. At each Board meeting. the directors discuss strategic and business
matters. financial. operational and govemance issues and other relevant issues that arise. Following Committee meetings. the Board
receives verbal reports from the Chair of each Committee at the next Board meeting. Because of this. the Board has an appreciation
of engagement with stakeholders and other relevant matters. which enables the directors to comply with their legal duties.

Below is an example of a principle decision taken by the Board during the year in respect of strategic and Compamy performance
and how it has had regard to the interests of, and impact on a sclection of its stakeholders.
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Principle Decision of the Board
Consumer Duty Plan and Champion

Following the publication in July 2022 of the FCA’s new Consumer Duty regulations (the Duty). which will focus on requiring
firms to act to deliver good outcomes for retail customers. the Board has been actively planning to ensure implementation for
relevant “open” products by 31 July 2023.

In addition. the Sales and Marketing Commitiee, reviewed and constructively challenged the initial implementation plan. which
included a detailed timeline for subsequent review and adoption of the High~Jevel implementation plan (the Plan}. In accordance
with the Consumer Principle., the Commitiee recommended to the Board that Mr Entwisle be appointed as the Company 's Consumer
Duty Champion. who. along with Mr Hayes as Chair and Mr Lane as CEO. will ensure that the Duly is regularly discussed and
considered as part of all relevam discussions.

As a consequence of the Sales and Marketing Committee’s recommendation. the Board appointed Mr Entwisle as Consumer Duty
Champion on the {4 September 2022.

On the 26 October 2022 the Plan was approved by the Board. The High Level Plan was developed followed a rigorous process
including input from EI('s Consumer Duty Steering Committee (which consisted of a number of subject matter experts) and in
consultation with Mr Entwisle as the Consumer Duty Champion. The Plan demonstrated an achievable approach to compliance with
the Duty within the required timeframes. having due regard for good customer outcomes.

The Plan outlined the ways in which the Board would mainlain oversight 10 ensure ongoing compliance with the Duty. including

regular engagement between the Steering Committee and the Consumer Duty Champion and regular updates to the Sales and
Marketing Committee and the Board.

Our Strategy in action

Our key stakeholders Methods of engagement and gutcomes

Shareholders
Organisations

and kev Baptist

The Board 15 responsible to its
sharcholders  tor the long-term
success of the Company, The
interests of the Company and its
shareholders are aligned with the
common purpose of benefiting the
Baptist community.

There is at least one Baptist Union of Great Britain (Baptist Union) Director, but
no more than a quarter of the 1otal number of dircctors of the Company. appointed
to the Board. This ensures that the vicws of the Baptist Union are communicated
to the Board as a whole and considered. Directors also actively engage with other
Baptist organisations and share stakcholder insights with the Board. There is a
Conflicts of Interest Policy in place to manage any actual and perceived conflicts
that might arise.

There are open channcls of communication between the Company and its
sharcholders. The directors regularly meet with its sharcholders both through
formal and informal means, In 2022 the Company held its Annual General
Meeting {AGM} which shareholders were invited o attend.

Customers and Baptist Community

The Company has a strong
reputation for defivering outstanding
customer service,

The Board regularly receive updates and actively challenge management on the
delivery ot the Customer Strategy. All Board members reccive a copy of the
Company's Business Report monthly. specifically noting customer satisfaction
scores and any complaints handling data. More detailed annual customer
satisfaction scores are also considered. Members of the Board actively engage
with its customer base. which usually includes attendance st the annual Baptisi
Conference.

10
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Ecclesiastical Insurance Office plc
(EIO)

Day to day management services are
provided by EIQ on the Company’s

EIO is accountable to the Board for all services undertaken in accordance with the
JAA. The Board annually reviews the provision of services undertaken by EIO on

behalf under the terms of JAA. | the Company’s behalf, providing rigorous challenge and oversight of management,
therefore the Company has no | Various members of EIQ’s management team attend Board meetings. Mr Lane was
employees. appointed as the Administrator Director by EIO. In addition Mark Hews. E1O Chief’
Executive Officer (CEQ) provides an annual update on EIO’s strategic position to
the Beard. The CEQ meets with Mr lHews to ensure the continued strategic
alignment of the companies. The Board of directors invited members of EI1O staff
to attend a breakfast at which open and honest dialogue was encouraged.
Regulators

The Board recognises the importance
of open and honest dialogue with
Regulators (including the Financial
Conduct Authority and the Prudential
Regulation Authority) and complying
with  applicable legislation and
regulation.

The Board (via its Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee (ARCC)) receives
regular updates on legal. regulatory and compliance matters. including the
Company s regulatory interactions. During 2022, the Company’s Chief Financial
Officer {CFO) and Chief Risk Officer (CRO) engaged with the PRA on behalf of
the Company. The Board also approved the Annual Solvency Financial Condition
Report (SFCR) and the Regular Supervisory Report {(RSR),

In additien. the Board (via its Committees} receives regular reports on the evelving
legal and regulatory landscape.

Other Supplicrs

The importance of the rolc that
suppliers play in ensuting a reliable
service is delivered to customers is
recognised by the Directors.

As a consequence of the importance that the Board places upon the role of suppliers.
the Board maintains a Procurement. Purchasing and Qutsourcing Policy. Regular
updates on performance against the policies are provided to the ARCC and reported
to the Board as required.

Community and Environment

The Company exists to support the
Baptist Community and also seeks to
make a positive contribution  to
society's well-being and help reduce
some of the harm brought about
through climate change.

The Board (via the ARCC) regularly reviews the risk associated with climate
change. Mr Lane has the Senior Management Function {SMF) responsibility for
managing <limate change risk on behall of the Board. All other associated SMF
responsibilities mirror those adopted by EIQ. The Board agreed a separate Risk
Register entry be created to capture Climate Change risks.

The Investment Committee continued with their EESG investing throughout the
year.

In addition. the Board is focused on its long term charitable giving to the Baptist
community and was pleased with the level of grants allocated in 2022,

V- o G

Mrs R. J. Hall
Secretary
30 March 2023
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The directors present their annual report and audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,
Future prospects
It is anticipated that the activitics of the Company will remain unchanged for the foreseeable future.

Gaing concern

The Company itself maintains a strong balance sheet position and good capital coverage. and it has no external loans. The
Company reinsures all of'its current business. except for terrorisnt cover. with EIOQ. which also provides administrative services
within a profit share arrangement. Therefore most of its insurance risks are ultimately borne by EJO, which is well capitalised
and has ratings of A2 and A with Moodys and AM Best respectively. The Company's assets excluding reinsurers share of
contract provisions are also greater than insurance contract liabilities. The Directors have considerced the impact of the economy.
inflation and interest rates on the Company, and whilst it has impacted the investment returns, the solvency coverage and capital
position has remained strong. The directors also consider they have provided adequately for risks not reinsured with E10 and.
as such, after considering the stresses and any mitigating actions as well as the financial and operating capability of E10, the
directors believe the Company is well placed to manage such risks to 31 December 2024. Accordingly, they continue 1o adapt
the going concemn basis in preparing the Annual Report and Accounts.

Results and Dividends
The loss hefore tax was £1.122.385 (2021: profit of £658,755).

The directors recommend that the pavment of dividends on the amounts paid up on the 4% cumulative preference shares and
on the 5% cumulative ordinary shares, for the year ended 31 December 2022, inthe sum of £7,328 (2021: £7,328). be confirmed.
This dividend is trcated as interest payable on permanent interest-bearing capital in the financial statements.

Political donations
The Company did not make any contributions for political purposes in the current or prior year.

Board of Directors

The directors of the Company at the date of this report are stated on page 3.

Mr P A Ellis resigned as a director on 31 March 2022,

Mr M N Hayes and Mr T J Rosc retire by rotation and. being eligible. offer themselves for re-clection.
Qualifying third-party pravisions

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were in place
throughout the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

Directors' responsibilities statement

The directors are tesponsible for preparing the annual report and the financial statements in accordance with applicable United

Kingdom law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare tinancial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors have elected
1o preparc the financial statements in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards (IAS). Under company law
the directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of

affairs of the company and of the profit or loss of the company tor that period.

In preparing these financial statements the directors are required to:

- select suilable accounting policies in accordance with TAS 8 Accounting Policies. changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors and then apply them consistently:

- make judgemenis and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent:
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- present information, including accounting policies. in a manner that provides relevant. reliable. comparable and
understandable information;

- provide additional disclosures when compliance with the specitic requirements in the UK-adopted International
Accounting Standards (IAS) is insufficient (o enable users to understand the impact of particular transactions. other
events and conditions on the {inancial position and financial performance:

- state whether UK-adopted international accounting standards (IAS) have been followed. subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

- preparc the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is appropriate to presume that the company will
not continue in business.

The directurs we responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufticient to show and explain the company’s

transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the tinancial position of the company and enable them to ensure

that the company financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the
assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Under applicable law and regulations, the directors arc also responsible for preparing a strategic report and  dircclors” report.
that comply with that law and those regulations. The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the
corporate and financial information included on the company s website.

Climate Change and environment
Information on the approach to climate change and the enviranment is provided on page 8.

Auditor and the disclosure of information to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit information.
being information needed by the auditor in connection with preparing its report. of which the auditor is unaware. Having made
enquiries of fellow directors and the Company's auditor. cach director has taken ali the steps that they ought to have taken as a
director in order 1o make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that
information. This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with Section 418 of the CA 2006.

In accordance with Section 489 of the CA 2006. a resolution proposing that Ernst & Young LLP be re-appointed as auditor
of the Company will be put to the annual gencral meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf bv:

N |

e LK
MrsR. J. Hall

Secretary
30 March 2023
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Independent auditor's report to the members of Baptist Insurance Company PLC
Opinion

We have auydited the financial statememts of The Baptist Insurance Company PLC {the “Company"'} for the year ended 31 December 2022 which
comprise the Statement of Profit or Loss. the Statement of Financial Position, the Statement of Changes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows and
the related notes 1 to 24, including a sumimary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their
preparation is applicable law and UK adepted international accounting siandards.

In eur opinion. the financial statements:
« give a true and fair view of the company’s atfairs as at 31 December 2022 and of its loss for the year then ended:
+ have been properly prepared in accordance with UK adopted international accounting standards: and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (LK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of cur report. We are
independent of the company in accordance with the ¢thical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including
the FRC’s Fthical Standard as applied to public interest entities, and we have fulfilled cur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requiremeris.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinien
Ceonclusions relating to Zoing concern

In auditing the financial statements. we have concluded that the directors™ use of the poing concem basis of accounling in the preparation of the
financial statements is appropriate. Our evaluation of the directors” assessment of the company's abilily 1o continue to adopt the going concern
basis of accounting included:

* confirming our understanding of management’s going concern assessment process and obtaining management’s asscssment which covers the
period through to 31 December 2024:

« assessing the accuracy of management’s analysis by testing the reasonableness ol the inputs to the cash flow model and the clerical accuracy of
the model used:

« evaluating the liquidity and solvency position af the Company by reviewing base case liquidity and salvency projections:

* obtaining and reviewing (he latest Board approved ORSA. assessed whether the stress testing included in the ORSA was reasonable and
considered the solvency position under each stress scenario;

= evaluating management's forecast analysis 1o understand how severe the downside scenarios would have to be to result in the elimination of
solvency and liquidity headroom and concluded it to be remote;

« assessing the plausibility of available management actions to mitigate the impact of the key risks by comparing them to our understanding of
the Company;

= performing enquiries of management and those charged with governance to identify rishs or events that may impact the Company s ability to
continue as a going concern, We afso reviewed management's assessment approved by the Board and mimutes of meetings of the Board and s
committees;

* holding a meeting with the Ecclesiastical Insurance (EIQ) Group Financial reporting manager to understand the going concern assessment
performed at E1O as the Company’'s ability to continue its aperations are fully dependent on EJO under the joinl administration agreement; and
~ assessing the appropriateness of the going concem disclosures by comparing the consistency with management’s assessment and for
compliance with the relevant reporting requirements,

Based on the work we have performed. we have not identified any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that. individually or
collectively. may cast significant doubt on the company s ability to continue as a going concern for a period to 31 December 2024

Our responsibifities and the responsibilities of the dircctors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant sections of this report
However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as Lo the company’s ability to continue as
a going concemn

Overview of our aundit approach

Key audit . Valuation of Pre-1998 insurance contract liabilities

matters s Estimates involved in the calculation of profit commission mcome

Materiality s Overall materiality of £15 1k which represents 2% of net assets
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An overview of the scope of our audit

Tailoring the scope

Our assessment of audit risk, our evatuation of materiality and our allocation of performance materiality determine our audit scope for the Company
This enables us to form an epinion en the financial statements. We take into account size, risk profile, the organisation of the Company and
effectiveness of controls, the potential impact of climate change and changes in the business environment when assessing the level of work to be
performed. All audit work was performed directly by the audit engagement team.

Climate change

There has been increasing interest from stakeholders as (o how climate change will impact companies. The Baptist Insurance Company PLC has
determined that the physical and transition risks from climate change do not currently pose a material risk to the Company. This is explained on page
8 in the principal risk and uncertainties section within the Strategic report, which form part of the “Other information™ rather than the audited
financial statements. Our procedures on these disclosures therefore consisted solely of considering whether they are materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appear to be materially misstated.

Our audit effort in considering climate change was focused on challenging management's risk assessment of the impact of physical and transition
risks and the resulting conclusion that there was no material impact from climate change and the adequacy ef'the Company’s disclosures on page
23 of the financial statements which explain the rationale.

Based on our work we have not identificd the impact of climate change on the financial statements to be a key audit matter or to mpact a key
audit matter.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that. in our professional judgment. were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the
current period and include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud} that we identified These
matters included those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy. the allocation of resources m the audit: and directing the efforts
of the cngagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole. and in our opinion
thercon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Risk Our response to the risk Key observations communicated to the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

[Valuation of the pre-1998 insurance We performed walkthroughs to understand the claims [We concluded that the methodology used by

contract liabilities (2022: £948k. 2021 Rliability valuation processes and identified key controldmanagement in the valuation of the pre-1998
920K} in place;

insurance contract liabilities was in line with
market practice and that it is appropriate for the
In conjunction with our actuarial specialists, we ize and complexity of the underlying risk
assessed the methodology, key assumptions and exposure

judgements used by Management. including the key
[The valuation of provision of insurance sensitivities and uncertainties in the valuation of the  §We determined that the actuarial assumptions

[Refer to the Accounting policies (page
126 and Noies 21 (page 39) of the
Financial Statemernts

contract liabilities is highly judgemental pre-1998 reserves: In particular we: used by management in the vatuation of the pre-
because it requires a number of 1998 insurance coniract liabilitics are reasonable
lassumptions te be made with the - Assessed the Company s methodology and verified {based on the analysis of experience to date,
festimation uncentainty covering both the key outputs from the model. industry practice and the financial reporting and
frequency and severity of claims, Pre- - L. Reviewed key metrics from the inputs to. and outputsf regulatory requircments.

Puly 1998 claims includes notified and
IBNR elements of claims. Since Pre-
1998 claims include PSA claims
therefore there is significant uncertainty
[in the calculation of these liabilitics.

trom the valuation models.

- Checked assumptions for reasonableness and
compared against the recent historical claim
experience and against our market benchmarks.
- Performed sensitivity testing to the main assumptions]
This balance. by nature, is also sabject tofto determine the sensitivity of the claims reserves (o
la risk of manipulation and, given the changes in these parameters

Imagnitude of the balance, a small
imanipulation of an assumption can have §The reserving process is inherently reliant on the

Jo significant impact on the result for the Eapality of the data fed into the process. As a result. we
year. tested the completeness and accuracy of incurred
claims data used:

We analysed claim payments patterns tor pre-1998
policies versus historical trends to assess the
reasonableness of the paid claims that inform the vear
end reserves:

We agreed a sample of pre-1998 PSA outstanding
clairus to the underlying clamms files; and

[We read all legal correspendence and Board minutes
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Iand considered any impact on insurance contract
liabilities.

Risk

Our response to the risk

Key observations communicated to the
Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

“stimates involved in the calculation of
l‘;roﬁl comumission income (2022 £618k,
2021 £390k)
[Refer 10 the Accounting policies (page
126}, and Note 6 (page 36} of the
\Financial Statements

JProfit share conunission is split 50:50
between EIO and the company. The
calculation of profit commission is
[dependent on the underwriting result,
jwhich includes the movement in the
claims provisions during the year. The
calculation of post 1998 IBNR, which
equires management judgment. 1s
herefore integral to the commission
alculation, Any misstatement in the
ost 1998 IBNR would result in an
incorrect commission income being
cported in the financial statements.

his balance is subject 10 manipulation
s BIC have an incentive 1o reduce the
ost 1998 IBNR to improve
underwriting result which increases
rofit commussion whereas EIO have an
incentive 1o increase post 1998 IBNR 1o
educe underwriting result and profit
ommission payable.

We read the profit share agreement in place to obtain
an understanding as to how it should operate:

We verified the mathematical accuracy of the
calculation performed by management and tied back
to the methodology set out in the agreemend.

In conjunction with our actwanial specialists, we
performed testing on the IBNR calculation for
accident vears 1998 and post; in particular we:

- Assessed the methodology for reasonableness and
identified the key assumptions m the analysis. We
audited the reasonableness of those key assumptions
by comparing against the Company’s recent historical
claim experience and against our market benchmarks.
- Assessed and challenpged BIC's approach to allowing
for the inflaticnary environments in their reserves

- Tested the caleulation of reinsurance recoveries on
IBNR and checked that this calculation was
reasonable given the EIO reinsurance program in
place.

- Performed independent claims reprojections of the
post-1998 property and liability excluding PSA
classes of business

We obtained a confirmation from EIQ for the amount
of profit commission for the vear.

We read the Board minutes where the final
commission figure 1s agreed.

'We obtained proof of final payment of the commission
Jincome made post year end.

We determined that the profit commission is
caleulated correctly in line with the terms agreed
with EIO and reported accurately in the Financial
Statements,

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality in planning and performing the audit. in evaluating the effect of identificd misstatements on the audit and in

forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude uf an omission or mussiatement that. individualhy or i the aggregate, conld reasonably be expected to mfluence the econonic
decisions uf the users of the financial statements. Materiolity provides a basis for determinmng the nature and exten! of owr audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the Company to be £151k (2021: 170k). which is 2% (2021 2%) of net assets We believe that net assets
provides us with both the regulatory strength of the entity and the ability 10 continue to make the grants and meet the entities charitable

objectives

Performance materiality

The upplication of materialin: at the individnal account or balance lfevel {t is set at an amount 1o redice o an appropriately low level the probabiluy
that the aggregate of uncorrected and undetected misstatenwenis exceeds materialiry.

On the basis of our risk assessments, together with our assessment of the Company’s overall control environment, our judgement was that
performance materiality was 75% (2021: 75%) of our planning materiality. namely £113k (2021: £128k}. Wc have set performance materiality at this
percentage due to corrected and uncorrected misstatements being below 25% of performance materiality in the previous year and the expectation that
corrected and uncorrected misstatements will be below 25% of performance materiality in the current vear.

Reporting threshold

An amount below which idennified niisstatements are considered as being clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all uncorrected audit differences in excess of £7k (2021: £9k), which is set at
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5% of planning materiality. as well as differences below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the quantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light of other relevant
qualitative considerations in forming our opinion,

Other information

‘Fhe other information comprises the information included in the annual report, other than (he financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information contained within the annual report.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in this reporl, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

Our responsibility is to read the other information and. in doing so. consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the course of the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsisiencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether this gives rise toa material misstatement in the
financial statements themselves or a material misstatement of the other informatien. 1f. based on the work we have performed. we conclude that
there 15 a material misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that fact

We have nothing to report in this regard,
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:
+ the information given in the strategic report and the directors™ report for the financial year for which the financial statcments are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements, and
= the strategic report and directors’ report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the audtt, we have not identitied
material misstatements in the strategic repott or directors” report

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requites us to report to vou if. in our
opinion:
« adequate accounting records have not been kept. or returmns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches not visited by us: or
« the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and retums. or
* certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

» we have not received all the information and explanations we requive for our audit
Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities set out on pages 12 and 13, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that thev give a true and fair view. and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary o enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from matenial misstatement. whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing,
as applicable. matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the direclors either intend to liquidate the
company of 10 cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance aboul whether the financial statements as a whole are free from materal misstaiement, whether
due 1o fraud or error, and 1o issue an auditor’s repert that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance. but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with [ISAs (UUK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can
arise from fraud or ervor and are considered material if. individually or in the aggregate. they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Explanation as to what extent the andit was considered capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud

Irregulanties, including fraud. are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures i line with our responsibiltics,
outlined above, to detect irregularities, including fraud. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of
not detecting one resulting from error. as fraud may imolve deliberate concealment by, for example. forgery or intentional misrepresentations. or
through collusion. The extent to which our procedurcs are capable of detecting irregularities, including fraud is detailed below

iHowever. the primary responsibility for the prevention and detection of fraud rests with beth those charged with gevernance of the company and
management,

» We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the company and determined that the most
significant are direct laws and regulations related to elements of the Companies Act 2006 and tax legislation. and the financial reporting
framework. Our considerations ol other laws and regulations that may have a material effect on the financial statements included
permissions and supervisory requirements of the Prudentiat Regulation Authority ('PRA’) and the Financial Conduct Authority ('FCA’).

* We understood how The Baptist Insurance Company PLC 15 complying with those frameworks by making enquiry of those charged
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with governance and senior management for their awareness of any non-compliance with laws or regulations, inquiring about the pelicies
that have been established to prevent non-compliance with laws and regulations by officers and employees and inquiring about the
Company’s methods of enforeing and monitoring compliance with such policies.

= We assessed the susceptibility of the company’s financial stalements to material misstatement. including how fraud might occur by
considering the controls that the Company has established 1o address risks identified by the Company, or that otherwise seck to prevent.
deter or detect fraud. We also considered areas of significant judgement. performance targets, economic or external pressures and the
impact these have on the control environment. Where this risk was considered to be higher, we performed audit procedures to address
each identified fraud risk. including the procedures over the actuarial assumptions and profit commission noted under the key audit
matters section above, With regard to revenue recognition fraud risk we agreed all of the gross premium income reccived during the vear
10 bank statements and additional procedures included 1esting a sample of manual journals. We have also agreed the monthly journal
uptoad of investment income into the general ledger 1o external investment managers reports. These procedures were designed to provide
reasonable assurance that the financial statement(s were free from fraud or error.

» Based on this understanding we designed our audit procedures to identify non-compliance with such laws and regulations. Qur
procedures involved making enquiry of senior management and the Audit Committee for their awareness of any non-compliance with
laws or regulations, inquiring about the policies that have becn established to prevent non-comphiance with laws and reguiations by
officers and employees, inquiring about the Company’s methods of enforcing and monitering compliance with such policies. inspecting
significant correspondence with the FCA and PRA and reviewing minutes of the Board and its committees, the complaints log and the
quarterly Internal Audit updates presented to the Audit Commitiee.

+ The Company operates in the insurance industry which is a highty regulated environment. As such the Senior Statutory Auditor
considered the experience and expertise of the engagement feam to ensure that the team had the appropriate competence and capabilities,
which included the use of specialists where appropriate

A turther description of our responsibitities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reparting Council’s website at
htips:#/www. frc org uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report

Other matters we are required to address

- Following the recontmendation fromi the audit committee we were appointed by the company on 19 October 2024 to audit the financial
statements for the vear ending 31 December 2020 and subsequent financial periods.

. The period of total uninterrupted engagement including previous rencwals and reappointments is 3 years, covering the years ending 31

December 2020 10 31 December 2022

. The non-audit services prohibited by the FRCs Ethical Standard were not provided to the company and we remain independent of the

company in conducting the audit,

. The audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit commitiee

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the company 's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of I?art 16 of the Compames Act 2006. Our audit work
has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those matters we are required to staie 1o themt in an auditor’s report and for no
other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by faw, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’'s
members as a body. for owr audit work, for this report. or for the opinions we have formed

Cemate & Yooir, L f

9

Andy Blackmore (Senior statutory auditor)

tor and on behalf of Emst & Young LLP. Statutory Auditor
Bristol

Date: 31 March 2023
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for the year ended 31 December 2022

Notes 2022 2021
£ £
Revenue
Gross written premiums 5 4,031,163 3.717.484
Qutward reinsurance premiums 5 (4,031,163 (3.717.484)
Net change in provision for unearned premiums 5 - -
Net earned premiums 5 - -
Fee and commission income 6 641,205 409.181
Net investment return 7 (1,119,213) 984.947
Total revenue {478,008) 1,394,128
Expenses
Claims and change in insurance liabilities 8 (1,996,651) (1.836.319)
Reinsurance recoveries 8 1,957,151 1.673,222
Fees. commissions and other acquisition costs 9 (16,335) (16.576}
Other operating and administrative expenses 10 (284,657) (248.911)
Total operating expenses (340,491) (428.584)
Operating (loss)/profit (818,500) 965.544
Finance costs 13 (7,328) (7.328)
Charitable grants 14 {296,557) (299.461)
(Loss)/profit before tax (1,122,385) 658.755
Taxation 15 175,200 {129.563)
(Laoss)/profit attributable to equity holders (947,185) 529,192

All the amounts above are in respect of continuing operations.

‘The Company had no recognised income or cxpense during the current tinancial year and the preceding (inancial vear other
than that included in the statement of profit or loss. Accordingly. no separate statement of other comprehensive income has
been presenied. profit or loss after tax being total comprehensive income for the year.
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Statement of Financial Position

at 31 Pecember 2022

Notes 2022 2021
£ £
Assets
Financial investments 16 7,862,040 9,088,105
Reinsurers' share of insurance contract provisions 21 6,294,639 5.242.337
Deferred tax asset 15 46,905 -
Other assets 17 698,713 535.850
Cash and cash equivalents 18 512,810 £73.842
Total assets 15,415,107 15.540.134
Liabilities
Permanent interest-bearing capital 20 147,850 147.850
Insurance contract provisions 21 7,242,139 6.161.837
Current tax liabilities - 126.556
Other liabilities 22 447,234 578.822
Tetal liabilities 7,837,223 7015065
Net assets 7,577,884 8.525.069
Equity
Retained earnings 7,577,884 8.525.069
Total equity 7,577,884 8.525.069

The financial statements ol The Baptist Insurance Company PLC. company registration number 00083597, on pages 19 to 43
were appraved by the board ot directors and awhorised for issue on 30 March 2023 and signed on their behalf by:

M ol AN \"\J\-—xz\

M, N. Hayes Chair

Le coal il <7,

M. H. Tripp Director
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Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2022

Note
Retained Earnings
Balance at 1 January
(Loss)/profit and total comprehensive (charge)income for the period
Balance at 31 December 19

The accounting pelicics and nules on pages 23 10 43 form part ot these accounts,
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2022 2021

i £
8,525,069 7.995.877
(947,185} 329.192
7,577,884 8.325.069
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The Baptist Insurance Company PLC

Statement of Cash Flows

for the vear ended 31 December 2022

Notes 2022 2021
£ £

(Loss)/profit before tax (1,122,385} 658,755
Adjustments foi:
Net fair value losses/(gains) on financial investments 7 1,306,515 {816.825)
Dividend and interest income 7 {191,759) (172.643)
Investment expenscs 7 4,457 4,521
Finance expense 13 7,328 7.328
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Net increase in insurance contract provisions 21 1,08¢.,302 838,276
Net increase in reinsurers' share of contract provisions 21 (1,052,302) (680.278)
Net increase in other assets 17 {162,863) {203.786)
Net (decrease)/increase in other liabilities 22 {131,589) 161.879
Cash used by operations (262,295) (204.773)
Corporation tax recovered/{paid) 1,739 (112.175)
Net cash used by operating activities (260,556) (316,947)
Cash flows from investing activities
Sale of financial investments - -
Purchases of financial investments (80,450) (138.03%8)
Dividends reccived 7 150,360 138,038
Interest received 7 41,399 34.605
Investiment expenses 7 (4,457) {4,521}
Net cash used by investing activities 106,852 30,084
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to company’s sharcholders 13 (7,328) (7.328})
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents {161,032) {294,191}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of vear 673,842 968.033
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 18 512,810 673.842
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1 Accounting policies
The principal accounting policies adopted in preparing the Company’s financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been applied consistently throughout the current and prior financial year.

Basis of preparation

The Company's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards
(IAS) and with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards, The
financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis, except for the revaluation of certain financial instruments
measured at fair value.

The Company itsell maintains a strong balance sheet position and good capital coverage. and it has no external loans. The
Company reinsures all of its current business. except for terrorism cover. with EIQ. which also provides administrative services
within a profit share arrangement. Therefore most of its insurance risks are ultimately borne by Ecclesiastical Insurance Office
ple (EIO). which is well capitalised and has ratings of A2 and A with Moodys and AM Best respectively. The Company's assets
excluding reinsurers share of contract provisions are also greater than insurance contract liabilities. The current economic
climate, inflation and cost of living crisis, driven by a number of economic and political events during the year. has created an
additional vncertainty 1o the business during 2022. Qur investment return has been impacted but we maintain a long term
strategy on the portfolio to generate profits, and we are aware of increased costs within the Company’s expense base as
inflation continues. We are also cognisant of the impact of this volatility to our customers and remain mindful of this in our
underwriting and grant-giving strategy. Qur capital position and solvency coverage remain in a strong position and projections
suggest this would continue. We continue to closely monitor developments in this area and the evolving impact it may have on
the business. The Directors have considered stresses to the solvency and liquidity of the Company to 31 December 2024 and
are satistied that thesc appropriately demonstrate the resilience of the business (and are significantly more extreme than those
experienced to date) and after considering the stresses and any mitigating actions as well as the financial and operating
capability of EIO. the directors believe the Company is well placed to manage such risks to 31 December 2024. The directors
also consider they have provided adequately for risks not reinsured with EIO and. as such, they continue to adopt the going
concern basis in preparing the Report and Accounts.

In preparing these financial statements the directors have considered the impact of the physical and transition risks of climate
change and identified this an emerging risk as set out on page 8. but have concluded that it does not have a material impact on
the recognition and measurement of the assets and liabilities in these financial statements as at 31 December 2022. This is
because the financial investments which are comprised of open-ended investment companies (OEICs). are reported at fair
value under UK-adopted International Accounting Standards (IAS) and as set out in this note below therefore utilise market
prices at the period end. These market prices will include the current expectations of the impact of climate change on these
investments. Insurance liabilitics are acerued bascd on past insurable events so will not be impacted by any future impact of
climate change. However, we recognise thal government and societal responses to climate change risks are still developing and
the future impact cannol be predicted. Future valuations of assets may therefore differ as the market responds to these changing
impacts or assesses the impact of current requirements differently and the frequency / magnitude of future insurable cvents
linked to the effect of climate risks could change.

The exemption in CA 2006 s402 and 5405(2) is taken as the subsidiaries disclosed in note 24 are not material to the financial
statements and are dormant, having not traded since incorporation. The Company has elected not to produce consolidated
financial statements.

In accordance with IFRS 4. fnsurance Contracts, the Company has applied existing accounting practices for insurance
contracts, modified as appropriate in accordance with UK adopted International Accounting Standards (IAS) and with the
requirements of the Companies Act 2006 as applicable to companies reporting under those standards,

New and revised standards

A number of amendments and improvements to accounting standards have been issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB). and endorsed by the UK. with an effective date of on or after | January 2022, and are therefore
applicable for the 31 December 2022 financial statements. None had a significant impact on the Comparty.
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IFRS 9. Financial Instrument. is effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. However the Company has taken
the option available (o insurers to defer the application of IFRS 9 as permitted by the amendments to IFRS 4. Insurance
Contracts. The Company qualifies for temporary exemption. which is available until annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023, since at 31 December 2015 greater than 90% of its Habilities were within the scope of IFRS 4. There have been
no significant changes to the Company’'s operations since tha date and as a result there is no requirement to reassess the use of
the temporary exemption. and therefore the Company will continue o apply IAS39, Firancial [nstruments.

The following standards were in issue but were cither not yet effective or have been deterred and therefore have not been
applied in these tinancial statements.

TFRS 9, Financial Instruments

Key requirements

Provides a new mode! for the classification and measurement of financial instruments. a single. forward-looking "expected
loss™ impairment medel and a reformed approach 1o hedge accounting,

Effective date

Annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018, Although can be deferred until 2023 for insurers in line with the effective
date of IFRS 17.

Expected impact on financial statements

There will be no change in the way debt and equity instruments are classified and wmeasured in the financial statements. The
Company may need 1o recognise expecied credit losses (ECLs) on certain financial assets classified and measured at amortised
cost. No changes are expected from the moere principles-based hedge accounting requirements. The Company is eligible for.
and has applied, the deterral approach. which gives a temporary exemption from applying IFRS ¢ until the effective date of
[FRS 17, Insurance contracts.

1FRS 17, Insurance Contracts

Key requirements

Requires insurance liabilities 1o be measured at a current fulfilment value and provides a more uniferm measurement and
presentation approach for all insurance comracts. These requirements are designed to achieve the goal of a consistent. principle-
based accounting for insurance contracts.

Effective date
Applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023,

Expected impact on financial statements

IFRS 17 is a comprehensive new accounting standard for insurance contracts covering rccognition and measurement,
presentation and disclosure. IFRS 17 replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts that was issued in 2003,

Expected profits (represented by the contractual services margin. “CSM™) are explicitly spread over the lifetime of the contract
in a formulaic manner matched o the provision of current and future coverage. rather than for example embedded within
ongoing releases trom a prudent reserving basis, Expected losses (arising on onerous contracts) are recognised up front and as
and when identified.

Wherc contracts are serviced over a long coverage period. the impact of this cenceptual change is potentially significant,
requiring new valuation models. Applying TFRS 17 to shorter duration insurance coverage (such as annual general insurance
policies). does not lcad 1o conceptual change to the basis. because previous practices allowed for the deferral of expected future
profits and initial recognition of losses. Whilst IFRS 17 impacts the timing of profit recognition. it will not impact the total
profit recognised over the Tifetime of the insurance contracts.

The chahges in presentation and disclosure are significant. leading to moere aggregated line items in the financial statements.
and changes which impact key performance indicators {for example Gross Written Premium is no longer an accounting line).
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The Company expects to use the premium allocation approach for the majority of its general business insurance contracts, and
for which the deferral of expected future profits and initial recognition of losses are not cxpected to represent a significant
change. The Company has developed accounting policies for the key accounting judgemecnts. It is not yet practicable to
quantity the overall impact on the financial statements expected at transition, however a number of individual decisions that
will impact the net assets quantum are well progressed and the Company is in the process of finalising the approach to be taken
to the new requirements and assessing the impact that this will have on the financial statements in preparation. The following
ar¢ considered the most relevant areas:

- Approach to determining discount rate : A bottom-up approach will be applied, adding a suitable loading for illiquidity above
the risk free rates to reflect that liabilities in the incurred claims phase have low liquidity.

- Determining and allocating the risk adjvstment for non-financial risk : The risk adjustment will be calibrated by line of
business, and allocated to the unit of account using the mix of classes present at the reporting date. The Company expects to
continue to take a prudent reserving approach. representing a high probability of sufficiency taking account of the unccrtainties
present in the reserves.

- Expense allocation : A new pelicy has been developed defining directly aitributable expenses as those which are required in
order to obtain and fulfil contracts. with other expenses being reported outside of insurance scrvices. Under the premium
allocation approach. the Company expects to continue deferring acquisition costs where applicable.

- Disaggregation of insurance finance income/expense between P&LL and OCI : Given that the financial assets held by the
Company are expected to be FVTPL ('Fair Value Through Profit and Loss"). there is less inclination to disaggregate and
disaggregation is operationally more complex. The Company therefore expects not to disaggregate these balances.

- Liability for remaining coverage financing components : No significant financing components are expected 1o arise for the
uncarned business, because premium payments occur within a year of the related coverage.

- Treatment of reinsurance contracts © Given the business structure in place. reinsurance is a Key ¢lement to understand the
performance of the Company. The Company reinsurance agreements are cxpected 1o fall under the premium allocation
approach and will be accounted for accordingly. In the event that any enerous contracls arise in tuture on gress contracts (none
are currently anticipated). it is expected that a loss recovery component of 100% of the value of the loss would be recognised at
the corresponding time because the Company reinsures 100% of its exposure to new conlracts.

- Transition approach to be applied : Full retrospective approach is considered most suitable for the business due to the short
term nature of coverage periods.

Amendments to other standards in issue but not vet effective are not expected to materially impaet the Company.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of estimates and assurnptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitics at the date of the financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of current events and actiens. actual results ultimately may ditfer from
those estimates. Those estimates which have the most material impact on the financial statements are disclosed in note 2.

Product classification

Contracts under which the Company accepts significant insurance risk from another party {the policvholder) by agreeing to
compensate the policyholder or other beneficiary if a specified uncertain future event {the insured event) adversely affects the
policyholder, are classified as insurance contracts. Contracts that do not transfer signiticant insurance risk are classified as
investment or scrvice contracts. All contracts offered by the Company meet the definition of an insuranee contract.

Premium income

Premiums are shown gross of commission paid to intermediaries and accounted for in the period in which the risk commences.
Those proportions of premiums written in a year which relate to periods of risk extending beyond the end of the year are carried
forward as uncarned premtiums.

Premiums written are shown net of insurance premium taxes. Qutward reinsurance premiums are accounted for in the same
accounting period as the premiums for the related direct insurance.
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Fee and commission income

Fee and commission income primarily comprises reinsurance commissions receivable. which are recognised as revenue in the
same manner as direct business. Non-insurance commissions receivable are accounted for in accordance with IFRS 15
Revenue fiom contracts with customers . and are recognised at the point at which the Company satisfies its performance
obligation. Where this income is variable. it is recognised at the point at which it is reasonably certain that no significant
reversal of the amount recognised would occur.

Reinsurance commission relates to a profit share receivable on the Reinsuranee agreement between the Company and EIO.
The profit commission reccivable ig calculated based on the net underwriting result of the related contracts during the vear in
accordance with the terms of the Reinsurance Agreement.

Net investment retarn

Net investment return consists of dividends and interest receivable for the vear. realised gains and losses. and unrealised gains
and losses on fair value investments. less investment expenses. Dividends on equity securities are recorded as revenue on the
ex-dividend date; interest inceme is recognised as it accrues.

Realised gains or losses represent the differcnce between the net sales proceeds and purchase price. Unrealised gains or losses
represent the difference between the valuation of invesiments al the year end and their purchase price. The movement in
unrealised investment gains and losses thercfore comprises the increase or decrease in the vear in the value of investments held
at the year end together with the reversal of previously recognised unrealised gains and Tesses on investments disposed of in the
current year.

Claims

General insurance claims incurred include all losses occurring during the year, an estimate of claims incurred but not reported.
related handling costs, a reduction for the value of salvage and other recoveries, and any adjustments to claims outstanding
lrom previous years.

Insurance contract liabilities
(i) Outstanding claims provisions

General insurance outstanding claims provisions arc based on the estimated ultimate cost of all claims incurred but not settled
at the year end, whether reported or not. Signiticant delays are experienced in the notification and settlement of certain types of
general insurance claims, particularly in respect of liability business, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty
al the vear end date. Any estimate represents a determination within a range of possible outcomes, Claims provisions are not
discounted.

(ii) Provision for unearned premiums

The proportion of written premiums. gross of commission pavable to intermediaries. attributable to subsequent periods 15
deferred as a provision for unearned premiums. The change in this provision is taken to the stalement of profit or [oss in order
that revenue is recognised over the period of risk.

(iii) Liability adequacy

Provision for unexpired risks is made where it is anticipated. on the basis of information available at the vear end. that claims
and administrative expenses are expected to exceed uncarned premiums. after taking accoumt of future investment income.
Unexpired risks are assessed separately for each class of business. Surpluses and deficits are offset where business classes are
considered to be managed together. No such provision was made at either vear end.
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Reinsurance

The Company has a reinsurance treaty with EIO which teok ctfect from 1998, whereby all business accepted by the company is
fully reinsured with Ecclesiastical Insurance Office ple with the exception of terrorism cover which is reinsured through a third
party. Pool Re. Reinsurance premiums are accounted for at the time the business is written by the Company. The Company's
and the reinsurers' share of claims are recognised at the time the claims are notified or earlier by way of a provision for claims
incurred but not reported.

Prior to the reinsurance treaty with EIQ, the Company had in place a reinsurance agreement with a third party for risks from
1971 (o 1998, which covers liabilities for that period. The Company had other arrangements in place prior to this date.

If a reinsurance asset is impaired, the Company reduces the carrying amount accordingly and recognises that impairment loss in
the statement of profit or loss. A reinsurancc asset is impaired if there is objective evidence that. as a resull of an event
occurring after initial recognition. the Company may not receive all the amounts due to it under the terms of the contract, and
the impact of the event on the amounts that the Company will receive can be reliably measured.

Financial instruments

IAS 39. Financial Instruments: Measurement and Recognition, requircs the classification of certain financial assets and
liabilities into separate categories for which the accounting requirement is different.

The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and liabilities. and is determined at the time of
initial recognition. Financial instruments are initially measured at fair value. Their subsequent measurement depends on their
classification.

Financial instruments designated as at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Changes in fair
value are included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which they arise. This category consists of financial
investments,

All other financial assets and liabilities are held at amortised cost using the effective interest method. except for short-term
receivables and payables where the recognition of interest would be immaterizl. Included in financial liabilities is permanent
interest-bearing capital.

The directors consider that the carrying value of those financial assets and liabilitics not carried at fair value in the financial
statements approximates to their fair value,

Ofiset of financial assets and financial liabilities

Finanecial assets and liabilities are offset. and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position, when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Financial investments
The company classifies its investments as financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss, as they are managed.
and their performance evaluated. on a fair vatue basis.

Purchases and sales of investments are recognised on the trade date. which is the date that the Company commits to purchase
or sell the assets, at their fair values less transaction costs. Investments classitied at fair valuc through profit or loss are
subsequently carried at fair value, with changes in fair value included in the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
they arise.

The tair values of investments are based on quoted bid prices.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand. deposits held at call with banks. cash held by invesiment broker. other short-
term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less and bank overdralis.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation. as a result of past events. and it is
probable that an outflow of resources. embodying economic benefits. will be required to settle the obligation. and a reliable
cstimate of the amount of the obligation can be made. Where the Company expects a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate assel, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The Company recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected henefits to be derived from a contract are less
than the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligatiens under the contract.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed if there is a possible future obligation as a result of a past event, or if there is a present
obligation but either an ouiflow of resources is not probable or the amount cannot be reliably estimated.

Taxation

Income tax compriscs currens tax and is recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the 1axable profit for the period and any adjustment 1o the 1ax payable in respect of previous periods.

Deferred tax is provided in full on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial
reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes, Deferred tax is measured using tax rates expected to apply when the
related deferred tax assct is realised or the deterred 1ax liability is settled based on tax rates and laws which have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the year end date.

Deferred tax assets arc recognised to the extent that it is probable that future 1axable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

2 Critical accounting estimates, and judgements in applying accounting policies

The Company makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. Estimates and judgements. where they arise, are regularly reviewed and based on historical experience and other
factors. including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. In the current and
prior ycar no material judgements were made.

Deferred tax asscts are recognised on tax losses carried forward only to the extent that the realisation of the rclated tax bencfit
is probable. based on future taxable profits estimated using business plans covering a 3 year period.

The ultimate liability arising from claims made under general business insurance contracts

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims made under general business insurance contracts is a critical
accounting estimate. There are various sources of uncertainty as 1o how much the Company will ultimately pay with respect 1o
such contracts. There is uncerainty as 1o the total number of claims made on each class of business. the amounts that such
claims will be scttled for and the timings of anv payvments.

The uncertaintics surrounding the estimates of ciaims payments for the various classes of business are discussed further in note
3. The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the ultimate settlement cost of claims reserves is presented in note 21(vi).
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3 Insurance risk
The risk under any one insurance contract is the possibility that the insured event occurs and the uncertainty of the amount
and timing of the resulting claim. By the very nature of an insurance contract. this risk is unpredictable and difficult to

quantify with certainty.

The principal risk that the Company faces under its insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments exceed
the carrying amount of the insurance liabilities. which may oceur if the frequency or severity of claims and benefits are greater
than estimated. Insurance events arc unpredictable and the actual level of claims and benefits may vary from year to year from
the estimate established using statistical techniques.

Experienee shows that the larger and mwre diversified the porttolio of similar insurance contracts, the smaller the relative
variability abouwt the expected outcome will be. As a niche market operator the Company's opportunity to diversify the type of
insurance risks is limited; however, some diversification is achieved by the geographical spread of its business within the UK.

General business risks

General insurance business classes writien include property and liability. Property cover mainly compensates the policyholder
for damage suffered to their properties or for the value of property lost. and may also include cover for other costs or losses
arising from the inability to use damaged or lost insured properties. Liability insurance contracts protect policyholders from
the liability te compensate injured emplovees {employers' liability) and third panies (public liability). Injury, death or
incapacity as a result of an unforeseen event is covered by the accident class of business.

In all operations, pricing controls are in place underpinned by sound statistical analysis and market expertise and appropriate
external consultant advice. The Company manages risks to limit severity through its underwriting strategy. a comprehensive
reinsurance programme and proactive claims handling.

Frequency and severity of claims

Property classes

For property insurance contracts. the number of claims made can be affected by weather events. changes in climate and crime
rates. Individual claims can vary in amount since the property insured is diverse in both size and nature. The cost of repairing
property varies according to the extent ot damage. cost of materials and labour charges.

Climate change may give rise 10 more frequent and severe extreme weather events. such as river flooding. hurricanes and
drought. and their consequences. for example, subsidence claims.

The maximum claim payable is limited to the sum insured. The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also
has the ability to impose deductibles. reject fraudulent claims and pursue third parties for payment of some or all costs. Most
contracts are underwritten on a reinstatement basis. Costs of rebuilding properties. of replacement or indemnity for contents
and time taken 1o restart operations for business interruption are the key factors that influence the level of claims. Individual
large claims are more likely to arise from fire, storm or flood damage. The greatest likelihood of an aggregation of claims
arises from weather related events,

Liabilitv classes

The settlement value of claims arising under public and employers' liability is particularly difficult to predict. There is
uncertainty as to whether any payments will bc made and. if they are, the amount and timing of payments. Key factors driving
the high levels of uncertainty include the late notification of possible claims events and the legal process.

The Company has the right to re-price the risk on renewal. It also has the ability to impose deductibles. reject fraudulent
claims and pursuc third parties for payment of some or all costs. The severity of bodily injury claims is highly influenced by
the value of loss of earnings and the future cost of care.
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Concentrations of risk

The underwriting strategy is designed to ensure that the underwritten risks are well diversified in terms of type and amount of
risk. The concentration of insurance risk for the financial year in relation to the type of risk accepted is summarised below,
with reference to gross written premiums:

Type of risk
Property Liability Accident Total
£000 £060 £0060 £000
Gross written premiums
2022 3,713 294 24 4,031
2021 3.404 238 25 3717

The Company operates a Joint Administration Agreement and a Reinsurance Treaty Agreement with EIO. under which E10
manages and administers the Company's insurance business and accepts all insurances writien by the Company with the
cxception of terrorism cover, which is reinsured through a third party. Pool Re. and is responsibic for all disbursements
relating 1o the business except certain expenses designated as the sole responsibility of the Company.

Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments

Property classes

The property classes give rise t6 a variety of ditferent types of claims including fire. weather damage. business interruption.
subsidence. and theft. There can be variability in both the number of claims in each period and the size of those claims. It a
weather event happens necar the end of the financial year. then the uncertainty about ultimate claims cost in the financial
statements is much higher because there is insufficient time for adequate data to be received to assess the {inal cost of claims.

Claims payvment, on average. occurs within a year of the claim event; however. there is variability around this average with
larger claims typically taking longer to settle.

Subsidence claims are difficult 1o predict because the damage is often not apparent for some time. Changes in soil moisture
conditions can give rise o changes in claim volumes over time. The ultimaie settlements can be small or large with a greater
risk of a settled claim being re-opened at a later date.

Liability classes

Late notification of possible claims necessitates the holding of provisions for incurred claims that may only emerge some
vears into the future. In particular the effect of inflation over such a long period can be considerable and is uncertain. A lack
of comparable past experience makes it difficult o quantify the number of claims and. for centain types of claims. the
amounts for which they will ultimately setile. The legal and legislative frameworks continues to develop. which has a
consequent impact on the uncenainty as to the length of the claims settlement process and the ultimate settlement amounts.

Claims that may arise from the liability class of business include damage 1o third party property. physical and sexual abusc.
physical injury. disease and psychological trauma, The Company has a different exposure profile to most other commercial
lings insurance companies as it has lower exposure to industrial risks. where uncertainty is higher.
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Note 21 presents the development of the estimate of ultimate claim cost tor public and employers' liability claims occurring in
a given year. This gives an indication of the accuracy of the estimation technique for incurred claims.

Sources of wacertainfy
The ultimate scttlement cost of incurred general insurance claims is inherently uncertain. Such uncertainty includes:

- whether a claim event has oceurred or not and how much it will ultimately settle for:

- variability in the speed with which claims are notified and in the time taken to settle them. especially complex
cases resolved through the courts:

- changes in the business portfolio affecting factors such as the number of claims and their typical settlement costs,
which may ditfer significantly from past patterns:

- new types of claim. including latent claims. which arise from time to time;
- changes in legislation and court attitudes to compensation. which may apply retrospectively:

- the way in which certain reinsurance contracts (principally liability) will be interpreted in relation to unusual/latent
claims where aggregation of claimants and exposurc over time are issues: and

- whether all such reinsurances will remain in force over the long term,

Prudence in the provisions for outstanding claims
The Company has taken into account the uncertain nature of claims reporting and settlement when provisioning for
outstanding claims.

Special provisions for latent claims

The public and employers’ liability classes can give rise to very late reported claims, which are often referred to as latent
claims. These can vary in nature and are difficult 1o predict. Currently. the Company only has access to very limited
information for some of these claims. They typically emerge slowly over many years. The Company has reflected this
uncertainty and believes that it holds adequate reserves for latent claims that may result from exposure periods up to the
reporting date.

4 Financial risk and capital management

The Company is exposed to financial risk through its financial assets. {inancial labilities. reinsurance assets and insurance
liabilities. In particular the key financial risk is that the proceeds from its financial assets arc not sufficient to fund the
obligations arising from its insurance contracts. The most important components of financial risk are credit risk. liquidity risk.
cquity price risk and interest rate risk.

As at the balance sheet date, there had been no change from the prior period to the financial risks that the Company was
exposed to. or the manner in which it manages and measures these risks. The current economic climate, inflation and cost of
living crisis, driven by a number of economic and political events during the vear, has created an additional uncertainty to the
business during 2022, Our investment return has been impacted but we maintain a long term strategy on the portfolio to
generate profits. and we are aware of increased costs within the Company’s expense base as inflation continues. Although
this has created volatility within these areas during the year, our capital position and solvency coverage remain in a strong
position. We do not expect this will have a long term adverse impact on the operations ol the business. and the solvency.
liquidity and financial outlock of the Company remain sufficient to withstand this.
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Categories of financial instruments
Financial assets

Fi ial Non-fi ial
Designated at Loans and  Cash and cash liabilities at assets and
fair value receivables equivalents  amortised cost liabilities Total

At 31 December 2022

£ £ £ £ £ £
Financial imvestments 7.860,044 - - - 1.996 7.862,040
Qther assets - 566,005 - - 179,613 745,618
Cash angd cash equivalents - - 512,810 - - 512,810
Permanent interest bearing capital - - - (147,850) - (147,850)
Other liabihties - - - (357,081) (90,152) (447,234)
Net insurance contract provisions - - - - (947,500) (947,500}
Current tax liabilities - - - - - -
Net assets 7,860,044 566,005 512,810 {504,931} (856,043) 7.577,884
At 31 Decentber 2021

£ £ £ £ £ £
Financiai imestments 9,086,109 - - - 1.996 9088105
Other assets - 332.698 - - 3,153 535850
Cash and cash equivalents - - 673 842 - - 673,842
Permancnt interest bearing caputal - - - (147 8500 - (147 850
Other liabilities - - - (422579} (156,243) (578.822)
Net ihsurance contract provisions - - - - (919,500) {919,300
Current tax habilities - - - - (126.5586) {126.556)
Net assets 9,086,109 532698 673.842 (570,429) (1,197,150, 8,525.069

As disclosed 1 the accounting policies. the Company has chosen to deter appheation of [FRS 9 and classifies and measures financial mnstruments using
1AS 39 To facilitate comparison with entities applying IFRS 9, the table below sets out the Company’s financial assets at the balance sheet date, split
between those which have contractual cash flows that are solely pavinents of pnincipal and interest on the principal outstanding (SPPI), other than those
which are held for trading or whose performance 15 evaluated on a fawr value basis, and all other financial assets

At 31 December 2022 At 31| December 2021
SPPI Other Total SPPI financial ~ Other financial ~ Total financial assets
financial financial financial assets assets
assets assets assets
£ £ £ £ £ £

Financial Investments - 7,860,044 7,860,044 - 9.086_109 9.086.108
Cash and cash equivalents §12.810 - 512,810 673,842 - 673 842
Other financial asscts 566.005 - 566,005 532,698 - 332,698
Total fair value 1,078,815 7,860,044 8.938,859 1.206,540 9,086,009 10.292.649

Fair value hierarchy
The fair valug measurement basis used to value financtal assets and financtal habilities held at fair value 15 categonsed o a fawr value hierarchy as
follows:

Level 1' fair values measured using quoted prices (unadjusted) w active markets for identical assets or abulines This category imeludes listed equities in
active markets. listed debt securities in active markets and exchange traded derivatives

Level 2 fair values measured using inputs other than quoted prices included within level | that are observable for the asset or liability. either directly {1 ¢
as prices) ot indirectls 11 e derived from prices} This categors includes histed debt or equuts securities in a market that is not active and derivatives that
are not exchange traded

Level 3 fair values measured using mputs tor the asset ot liatility that are not based on observable market data {unobservable mputs) This category
includes unlisted equities. including investents in venture capilal. and suspended sccurities

All financial instruments recognised by the company and designated at fair value in the current and prior vear are classified as level 1. Accordingly no
analysis of fair value measurement hases 1s presented
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{a) Interest rale risk

The table below summarises the maturity dates at the vear end for those financial assets that are exposed to 1nterest rate risk.

2022 2021

£ £

Other assets including insurance imstalment receivables 284,5%4 459401
Cash and cash equivalents 512,810 673,842
797,404 1,133,243

All amounts have maturity dates of less than one year.

General business insurance liabilities are not directly sensitive 1o the level ol market interest rates. as they are undiscounted end
contractually non-interest bearing. Furthermore, these habilities do not have maturity dates hence are not included in the above tables

(b) Credit risk
The Company has exposure to credit risk. which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to pay amounts in full when due. Key areas
where the Company is exposed to credit sk are’

- remsurers” share of insurance liabilities {excluding provision for unearned premiums) and amounts due from remsurers in respect
of claims already paid,

- amounts due from insurance intermediaries and policyholders:
- amounts due from EIO under the Joint Admimstration Agreement and Remnsurance Treaty; and
- deposits held with banks.

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the Company's maximum expesure to credit risk. No signiftcant amounts are overdue,
and none are impaired.

The Company uses reinsurance to manage insurance risk. with all business accepted by the Company tully reinsured with EIO, with the
exception of terrorism cover which is reinsured through a third party. Pool Re This does not, however. discharge the Company's liability
as primary insurer 1f a reinsurer fzils to pav a claim for any reasen, the Company remains liable for the payment to the policyholder.
EIO mitigates 1ts own insurance risk through a comprehensive programme of reinsurance lts Remnsurance Security Commitiee assesses.
monitors and approves the creditworthiness of its reinsurers reviewing relevant credit ratings provided by the recognised credit rating
agencies, as well as other publicly available data and market information At the date of this report EIQ has credit ratings of A2 (stable
outlook } with Mgady's, and A (stable outiook ) with AM Best

The Company's credit risk policy details prescriptive methods for the collection of premiums and control of intermediary and
policyholder debtor balances The level and age of debtor balances are regularly assessed via monthly credit management reports and
where possible ¢reditors are monrtored via credit reference agencies to minimise the risk of default

Where available the Company manages 1ts exposure 1o credil risk 1 relation to eredit risk ratings Investment grade financial assets arc
classified within the range AAA to BBEB ratings, where AAA 15 the highest possible rating Financial assets which fall owiside this range
are classified as sub-invesiment grade 'Not-rated’ assets capturc assets not rated by external rating agencies.

The following table provides information regarding the credit nsk exposure of financial assets with credit ratings from Standard & Poors
or {rom a similar agency, This includes financial asscts that meet the defmition of 'solely payments of principal and interest’ (SPPI).

As at 31 December 2022 SPPI Non-SPPI
::sih and Other financial Financial
equis alents assets Total SPPI Investments

AAA - - - .

AA - - - -

A 512.810 2,687 515,497 -

BBR - - -

Below BBB R - - -

Not rated - 610,222 610,222 7,860,044

512,810 612,909 1,125,719 7,860,044
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Asat 31 December 2021 SPP1 Non-SPPI
Cash and cash  Other financial Financial
equivalents assets Tota) SPPI Investments

AAA - - - -

AA - - - -

A 673,842 - 673,842 -

BBB - - - -

Below BBB - - - -

Nat rated - 532,697 532,697 9,086,108

673,842 532 697 1,206,539 9,086,109

The financial investments are comprised of open-ended investment companies (OEICs) and although shown as not rated above at an
aggregate level, the Company monitors the rating composition within the holdings to ensure they meet risk appetite levels The applicable
ratings of the respective companies are contained in the look through data, which forms part of the regulatory returns

(¢} Liquidity risk

The Company i3 exposed to datly calls on its available cash resources mainly from claims anising from insurance contracts. Liquudity risk
15 the risk that funds may not be available to pay obhigations when due The Company has robust processes m place 10 manage liquidity
risk and has adequate access to funding in casc of exceptional need Sources of funding include available cash balances. other readily
marketable assets and access to short-term bank funding

Financial liabilities of the Company all mature within one year. with the exception of permanent interest-bearing capital, which 1s
rredeemable, An estimate of the tming of the net cash outflows resulting from msurance contracts s provided in note 21

{d) Equity price risk

Invesiments held by the Company and classified at tair value through profit or loss are exposed to price risk The risk is mitigated by
holding a diversified portfolio of UK and overseas equuities indirectly through thvestment in open-ended investment companies (OEICs)

(¢} Equity risk sensitivity analysis
The sensitsvity of profit to movements in equity price nsk 1s shown in the following table
Potential increase/
(decrease) in

Change in profit
Variable variable 2022 2021
£ £
Equity price risk -14% (636,664) {735,875)
+10% 636,664 735975

The assets 1o which the equity risk has been calculated related to OEICs  As at 31 December 2022 the Company held mvestments as
OFEICs which have a sigmficant fixed interest element within them The assessment is theretore considered to be a prudent view of the
potential tisk that may anse. as the mix of Hixed interest and equity mitigates the total exposure

(N Capital management
The Company 1s subject 10 nsurance solvency regulations. and capital 1s managed and evajuated on the basis of regulatory capital The
Cantpany’s ohjectives when niatiaging capital are
- to comply with the regulator's capital requiremients of the nsurance market in which the Company aperaies. and
- to safeguard the Company's ability 10 continue to meel stakeholders’ expectations, in accordance with 1ts corporate mission, vision
and values

The Company is required to comply with the rules 1ssued by the PRA and FCA inciuding a Furope-wide regulatory capital regime
(Solvency 1) adopted by the PRA Annual guantitative teturns are submutted to the PRA in addition to a quabitatn e report. the Regular

Supervisory Report (RSRj which 15 submuted pertodically A further report, the Solvency and Financial Condition Report (SFCR) 15
produced annually and must be published on the Compant's website.

[During the vear. the Company complied with these capital requirements
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The Company has adepted the Solvency 1T standard formula approach 1o determine its solvency capital requirement (SCR) The Company
15 Tequired 1o maintain its regulatory capital above the higher of the SCR and MCR (Minimum Capital Requirement) For the 2022
accounts, the applicable measure is the MCR Economic capital is the Company’s own internal view of the level of capital required, and
this measure is an integral part of the QOwn Risk and Solvency Assessment Report (ORSA) which is a private, internal forward looking
assessment of own risk and capital requirement . as required as part of the Solvency Il regime Rusk appetite is set such that the target level

of economic capital 1s always higher than the regulatory MCR

3 Net insurance premium revenue

Gross written premiums
Change 11y the gross provision for unearned premiums

Gross eamed premiums

Outward remsurance premiums
Change in the provision for unearned premiums, reinsurers’ share

Reinsurers' share of earned premiums
Premiums written, net of reinsurance

Earned premiums, net of reinsurance
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2022 2021
£ £
4,031,163 3.717.484
(169.,666) (63.201)
3,861,497 3.654,283
(4,031,163) (3,717.484)
169,666 63.201

(3,861,497)

(3,654,283)
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6 Fee and commission income 2022 2021
£ £
Reinsurance commissions and profit commission 634,142 406.244
Other commissions 7,063 2.937
641,205 409.181
The Company receives no fee and commission income from its contracts with customers in accordance with IFRS 15,
7 Net investment return 2622 2021
£ £
Income from finarcial assets at fair vaiue through the siatement of profit or loss:
- dividend income 150,360 138.038
hwome from financial assets not at fair valwe through the statement of profit or loss:
- other income received 41,399 34,605
Investment income 191,759 172.643
Fair value {losses)/gains on investmients at fair value through the statement of profit or loss {1,306.515) 816.825
Investment expenses (4,457) (4.521)
Net investment return {1,119,213) 984.947
8 Claims and change i insurance liabilities and reinsurance recoveries 2022 2021
£ £
Gross claims paid (1,086,014} (1,061,244}
Gross change in the provision for claims {910.637) (775,075}
Claims and change in insurance liabilities {1,996,651) (1.836,319)
Reinsurers' share of claims paid 1,074,514 1.056.144
Reinsurers’ share of change in the provision for claims 882,637 617.078
Reinsurance recoveries 1,957,151 1,673,222
Claims and change in insurance liabilities, net of reinsurance (39,500) (163.097)
9 Fees, commissions and other acquisition costs 2022 2021
£ £
Commission paid 16,338 16.576
[0 Other operating and administrative expenses
2022 2021
Operating profit has been arrived at after charging: £ £
- Directors’ fees and expenses 93,443 105.302
- Professional fees 15,780 39.035
- Other operating expenscs 175,434 84.574
284,657 248.911
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11 Auditor's remuneration 2022 2021
£ £

Fees payable to the Company's auditor for:

- The audit of the Company's annual accounts 144,500 72,100

Total audit fees 144,500 72.100

There were no fees incurred for nen-audit services or Solvency 1T in both years.

Amounts disclosed are exclusive of service taxes.

12 Emplovee information

As all manageiuenl services are provided by EIOQ under the terms of the Joint Administration Agreement, the Company had no
empleyees in either the current or prior year.

13 Finance costs 2022 202;:
Interest payable on permanent interest-bearing capital 7.32: 7.328
14 Charitable grants 2022 2021
Charitable grants paid or accrued 296,55$ 299.46f

Actual monies paid amounted to £336.954 which included an accrual brought forward (2021: £256,565 which included an accrual
brought forward).

15 Taxation 2022 2021
£ £
UK corporation tax for the current financial year 127,737 (128,295)
Adjustment in respeci of prior periods 558 (1.268)
Tax expense 128,295 (129,563)
Deferred taxation credit 46,905 -
Tax credit/{charge) 175,200 (129.563)

Tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the United Kingdom standard rate of corporation tax for the reasons set out in the
following reconciliation:

2022 2021
£ £

(Loss)/profit before tax (1,122,385) 658.755
Tax credit/{expense} calculated at the UK standard rate for the year of 19.00% (2021: 19.00%). 213,253 (125,163)
The change in 1ax rate will have no material effect on the tax charge.
Factors affecting charge for the period:
Dividends from UK c¢ompanies 9,530 6.411
Impact of differential between current and deferred tax rate 10,155 -
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (57,738) (9.543)
Adjustments to tax charge in respect of prior periods - {1.268)
Tax credit/(expense) 175,200 (129.563)

Current tax has been provided at a rate of 19% for both the current and prior year. Deferred lax has been provided at a blended rate of
24.25% for the current year (2021: 19%).

Tt was announced in the UK Government’s budget on 3 March 2021 that the UK corporation tax rate will increase 10 25% with etfect
from I April 2023. This change was substantively enacted on 24 May 2021,

The Company has unused tax losses of £193.421 (2021: £Nil), for which a deferred tax asset of £46.905 has been recognised. The
losses are available for offset against future profits and can be carried forward indefinitely.
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16 Financial investments

2022 2021
Financial investments at fair vailue through the statement of profit or foss £ £
Tquity securities:

- listed 7,860,044 9.086,109
7,860,044 9.086,109

Investments in group undertakings
Shares in subsidiary undertakings 1,996 1.996
1,996 1,996
Total financial investments 7,862,040 9.088.105

Al equity securities are designated by the Company to be measvred at fair value through 1he statement of profit or loss. No financial
investments mature within one year (2021: £nil). The financial investments are held as OEIC {Open Ended Investment Company)
funds which contain both fixed interest and equity elements.

17 Other assets 20;2 202;

Receivables arising from insurance and reinsurance contracts:

- due from contract holders 421,729 316313

- duc from agents, brokers and intermediaries 13,812 16.380

- due from reinsurers 2,687 -

Other receivables 260,485 203,157
698,713 535.850

Other assets are all current and. due to their short-termy nature, the above carrying amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair
value.

At 31 December 2022, £943 (2021: £4.176) of receivables from contract holders. agents. brokers and intermcediaries were past duc
and not impaired. No impairment charges have been recognised in the current or prior year.

18 Cash and cash equivalents

2022 2021

£ £

Cash heid at bank 498,025 672,185
Cash held at fnvestment manager 14,785 1.657
512,810 673.842

The above carrving amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair valuc.

19 Statement of changes in equity

The Company does nat have any equity sharcholders. Both the ordinary and the preference shares are entitied to fixed percentage
dividends on the amounts paid up on the shares, but arc not entitled te participate further in the profits of the Company. whether as a
going concern or on winding up.

The directors may make grants out of any surplus profits of the company after pavment of expenses and dividends and atier selting
monies aside to any reserve fund to or for the benefit of any ministers. churches or societies of the Baptist denomination: any
individaal who is a Baptist and whose prime vision and ministry is Christian evangelistic work: and the Council of the Baptist Unijon
for it to apply in such a manner as 1t may determine.
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20 Permanent interest-bearing capital

Authorised share capital:
2,000 4% cumulative preference shares of £5 each
28.300 5% cumulative ordinary shares of £5 each

Called up. allotted and fully paid share capital:
1,286 4% cumulative preference shares of £5 cach
28.284 5% cumulative ordinary shares of £5 each

2022 2021

£ £
10,000 10.000
141,500 141,500
151,500 151.500
6,430 6.430
141,420 141,420
147,850 147,850

The Company's preference and ordinary shares are entitled to annual dividends of 4% and 5% respectively on the amount paid up.
The Company has an obligation at the year end date in relation to the dividends payable on the shares and. because of this, the
Company is required to account for the whole of its called up share capital as 'permanent interest-bearing capital' in the statement ot’

financial position under IAS 32, Financial Instruments: Presentation.

On winding up, sharcholders are entitled only to the amount paid up on shares. and preference shares take priorily over ordinary

shares on winding up.

Preference and ordinary shares are non current liabilities. They are not redeemable and carry equal voting rights.

21 Insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets
Claims outstanding

Gross

Claims outstanding

Uneamed premiums

Total gross insurance liabilities

Recoverable from reinsurers

Claims outstanding

Unearned premiums

Total reinsurers” share of insurance liabilities
Net

Claims outstanding

Uncarned premiums

Total net insurance liabilities

Gross insurance liabilities

Current

Non-current

Total gross insurance liabilities
Reinsurance assets

Current

Non-current

Total reinsurers” share of insurance liabilities
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2022 2021

£ £
5,019,263 4.108,627
2,222,876 2,053,210
7,242,139 6.161.837
4,071,763 3.189.127
2,222,876 2.053.210
6,294,639 5242337
947,500 919,500
947,500 919.500
3,439,035 2.950.817
3,803,104 3.211.020
7,242,139 6.161.837
3,439,035 2.950.817
2,855,604 2,291,520
6,294,639 5.242.337




The Baptist Insurance Company PLC

Notes to the Financial Statements

General business insurance contracts

(i) Reserving methodology

Reserving for insurance ¢laims is a complex process and the Company adopts recognised actuarial methods, and, where appropriate,
other calculations and statistical analysis. Actuarial metheds used include the chain [adder method.

Chain ladder methods extrapelate paid amounts. incurred amounts {paid claims plus case estimates). the number of claims or average
cost of claims. to ultimate claims based on the development of previous years. This method assumes that previous patterns are a
reasonable guide to future developments. Where this assumption is felt to be unreasonable. adjustments are made.

The selection of results for each accident year and for each reserving class depends on an assessment of the most appropriate method.
Sometimes a combination of techniques 1s uscd.

(ii) Calculation of uncertainty margins

To reflect the uncertain nature of the outcome of the ultimate settlement cost of claims, and to ensure prudent provisions are made. an
addition is made to the most likely outcome, The addition for prudence is assessed primarily by the Thomas Mack actuarial method,
based on at least the 75th percentile confidence level. For smaller reserving classes. where the Thomas Mack method cannot be
applied, provisions have been calculated at a leve! intended to be equally prudent. Where the standard methods cannot allow for
changing circumstances then additional uncertainty marging are added and are typically expressed as a percentage of outstanding
claims. In addition to this mathematica! approach, from time to time the management may elect to reflect short term uncertainties
using scenarios analyses. This approach generally results in a favourable release of provisions in the current financial year. arising
from the settfement of ciaims relating to previous financial years. as shown in part (viii) of the note.

(iiiy Calculation of special provisions for latent claims

The Company adopts commonly used industry methods including those based on claims frequency and severity and benchmarking.
The Company also includes additional reserves for exposure where limited information is currently known. however risks have been
identified.

(iv) Assumptions

The Company lollows a process of reviewing its reserves for outstanding c¢laims on a quanerly basis. This involves an appraisal of
each reserving class with respect 1o ultimate claims liability for the recent exposure period as well as for earlier periods. together with
a review of the factors that have the most significant impact on the assumptions used to determine the reserving methodology. The
work conducted on cach reserving class is subject Lo an internal peer review and management sign-off process.

The most significant assumptions in determining general insurance reserves are the anticipated number and ultimate settlememt cost of
claims, and the extent to which reinsurers will share in the cost. Factors which intluence decisions on assumptions include legal and
judicial changes, significant weather events. other catastrophes, subsidence events, exceplional claims or substantial changes in
claims experience and developments in older or latent claims. Significant factors influencing assumptions about refnsurance are terms
of the reinsurance treaties, the anticipated titme taken to settle a claim and the incidence of large individual and aggregated claims.

(v) Change in assumptions
There are no significant changes in assumptions.
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(vi} Sensitivity of results
The ultimate amount of claims scitlement is uncertain and the Company's aim is to reserve 10 at least the 75th percentile confidence
level. The following table illustrates the sensitivity to changes in the level of claims in the principal segments of the business.

If final settlement of insurance claims reserved tor at the year end turns out to be 10% higher or lower than that included in these
financial statements. the following pre-tax loss or profit will be realised:

2022 2021
Gross Net Gross Net
£000 £000 £000 £000
Liability 331 84 332 92
Property 132 - 79 -

(vii) Claims development tables

The nature of insurance business is that claims may take a number of years to settle and before the final liability is known. The
following table shows the development of the estimate of ultimate gross claims cost for these classes across all territories. Net liability
for the perinds covered in the table is zere as all business in these periods is 100% reinsured. A net liability remains in respect of
carlier periods.

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 Total

£600 £000 £000 £000 L0060 £000 L000 £000 £000 £000 £00H
Estimate of ultinate claims:
At end of year 1,134 1,889 1,423 1,105 1571 1,904 020 1,137 1,656 1,629
One year later 934 £,796 1,i0¢9 991 1,048 i.819 45¢ 926 1,489
Two vears later 880 1,740 034 930 983 1,767 624 1,018
Three years later 883 1,317 942 849 949 1,793 588
Four vears later 836 1,302 944 874 930 1.740
Five vears later 834 1,302 945 864 946
Six vears later 857 1,307 947 863
Seven years later 858 1,309 943
Eight years later 860 1,306
Nine vears later B56
Current estmate of §58 1.308 943 863 246 1,740 588 1,018 1,189 1,629 11,378
Cumutative
payments to date (806) (1.236) (893) (813) (8973 (1,681 (539) (825 (L.26%) (346) (9,329
Outstanding habitity 50 50 50 51 49 49 49 193 223 1,283 2,040
Lisbility in respect of earlier vears 2.870
Total gross hability included in insurance Habilities in the balance sheet 5.019
Reinsurers' share of contract provisions (4,072)
Total net habality G418
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(viii) Movements in insurance liabilities and reinsurance assets

Gross Reinstrance Net
£ £ £

Claims outstanding
At 1 January 2022 4,108,627 (3,189,127) 919,500
Cash paid for prior year ¢laims settled in the year (739,782) 728,282 (11,500)
Change in prior year liabilities/reinsurance assets 434,259 (394,759) 39,500
Prior vear liabilities/reinsurance assets at 31 December 2022 3,803,104 (2,855,604) 947,500
Current year claims incurred 1,562,391 (1,562,391) -
Cash paid for current year claims settied in the year (346,232) 346,232 -
Current ycar liabilities/reinsurance assets at 31 December 2022 1,216,159 (1,216,15%) -
At 31 December 2022 5,019,263 (4,071,763) 947,500
Provision for unearned preminms
At 1 January 2022 2,053,210 (2,053,210) -
Movement in the year 169,666 (169,666) -
At 31 December 2022 2,222,876 (2,222,876) -
Claims outstanding
At 1 January 2021 3.333.551 (2.572,049} 761.502
Cash paid for prior year claims settled in the year {302.388) 297,788 (5.100}
Change in prior year liabilities/reinsurance assets 180,358 {17,260} 163,098
Prior year liabilities/reinsurance assets at 31 December 2021 3.211.021 (2.291,521) 919,300
Current year claims incurred 1.655.962 (1.655.962) -
Cash paid for current year claims settled in the year (758,356} 758.356 ~
Current year [iabilities/reimsurance assets at 31 December 2021 897.606 (897,606) -
At 3] December 2021 4,108.627 {3.189.127) 919500
Provision tor uneamed premiums
At 1 January 2021 1.963.010 (1,950.01M (0
Movement in the year (3,201 (63.201) 0
At 31 December 2021 2,053,211 (2,053.211) -

The net iiability for unearned premium is £nil (2021: £nil) as the company's provision is egxactly matched by the corresponding
reinsurer's share asset.
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22 Other liabilities

2022 2021

£ £

Creditors arising out of direct insurance operations 74,598 56.245
Creditors arising out of reinsurance operations 94,083 263.920
Other creditors 139,101 1201.689
Amounts owed to related parties - Subsidiaries 1,996 1.896
Accruals and deferred income 137,456 135.972
447,234 378.822

Current 445,238 576.826
Non-current 1,996 1.996

The above carrving amounts arc a rcasonable approximation of tair value.

Subsidiaries are Baplist Insurance Services L.id and Baptist Support Services Lid

The creditors arising out of reinsurance operations comprises £801.998 (2021: £757,488) pavables net ot £707,915 (2021: £493,568)
receivables.

23 Related Party Transactions

The Company has a reinsurance treaty with ElO whereby all business accepted by the Company is fully reinsured with EIO with the
exception of terrorism cover which is reinsured through a third party. Pool Re. Reinsurance premiums arc accounted for at the time
the business is written by the Company. The Company’'s and the reinsurers' share of claims are recognised at the time the claims are
notified or carlicr by way of a provision for claims incurred but not reported.

The Company operates a Joint Administration Agreement with EIQ under which all administration expenses are borne by EIO.

During the year the Company ceded premiums net of claims paid and commissions to the value of £3,035,025 (2021: £2.608.910) (o
ELO, which also bore expenses of the Company’s business of £1,162.015 (2021: £1.020.944). The reinsurer’s share of technical
provisions due from EIO as at 31 December 2022 is £4.958.639 (2021: £4.308.837). which consists of £2.222.876 (2021; £2.053.210)
of unearned premium and £2,735.764 (2021: £2.255.627) of outstanding claims. At 31 December 2022, £89.388 was due 1o EIO
(2021: £261.418 due to E1O).

Recipients of grants are proposed by the grants committee, and ratified by the Board.
Transactions and services with related parties are made on commercial terms.

At 31 December 2022, £998 was due to Baptist Insurance Services Limited (2021: £998) and £998 due to Baptist Support Services
Ltd (2021: £998).

24 Subsidiary undertakings
The Company's interest in subsidiary undertakings at 31 December 2022 is as follows:

Share Capital [Tolding
Baptist Support Services Limited Ordinary shares 99.8%
Baptist Insurance Services Limited Ordinary shares 99.8%

The Company is the controlling party of both subsidiaries which are incorporated in England and Wales. are dormant. having not
traded since incorporation. and are not material to the Company's accounts. Their registered office is the same as the Company's
address as noted on page 3.
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